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The House met at 9 am. and was
called to order by the Speaker.

PRAYER

Reverend James Stoeger, 8.J., Presi-
dent, Jesuit Secondary BEducabion As-
sociation, Washington, D.C., offered
the following prayer:

God of love, bless the Members of
this House. Please help those who labor
here recognize how You are present in
their service and leadership. Guide
them as they seek to bhe effective for
the good of all Your people.

Loving God, may our leaders be alert
to the cares, hurts, and challenges of
our citizens and our communities. Help
those leaders choose well directions
and aciions that benefit those likely to
be left out and all who express and
strengthen our Nation’s values, which
are our greatest assets.

May we hear and pursue Your sacred
message, merciful God, that we be
women and men with the capacity of
peacemakers, realistic and also deeply
thoughtful and wise.

Finally, gentle God, bring to those
who serve here a participation in Your
own gifts, such as rich insight and also
joy, in their care for the well-being of
our country and the world.

Amen.

e

THE JOURNAL

The SPEAKHER. The Chair has exam-
ined the Journal of the last day’s pro-
ceedings and announces to the House
his approval thereof.

Pursuant to clause 1, rale 1, the Jour-
nal stands approved.

Mr, BURGHESS. Mr. Speaker, pursu-
ant to clause 1, rule I, I demand a vote
on agreeing to the Speaker’s approval
of the Journal.

The SPRERAKRER., The guestion is on
the Spealker's approval of the Journal.

The question was taken; and the
Speaker announced that the ayes ap-
peared to have it.

Mr, BURGESS. Mr. Speaker, I object
to the wvote on the ground that a
quorum is not present and make the
point of order that a guorum is mnot
present,

The SPEAKER. Pursuant to clause 8,
rule XX, further proceedings on this
guestion will be postponed.

The point of no gunorum is considered
withdrawn.

——— S p——er—

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

The SPEAKER. Will the gentleman
from Texas {(SAM JOENSON) come for-
ward and lead the House in the Pledge
of Allegiance.

Mr. SAM JOHNSON of Texas led the
Pledge of Allegiance as follows:

I pledge allegiance to the Flag of the
United States of America, and to the Repub-
lic for which it stands, cne nation under God,
indivisible, with liberty and jastice for all.

et e —

ANNOUNCEMENT BY THE SPEAKER

The SPEAKHER. The Chair will enter-
tain up to five requests for l-minute
speeches on each side of the aisle.

NUCLEAR DEAL WITH IRAN

(Mr. SAM JOHNSON of Texas asked
and was given permission to address
the House for 1 minute and to revise
and extend his remarks.)

Mr. SAM JOHNSON of Texas. My,
Speaker, by all accounts, President
Obama seems hell-hent on striking a
nuclear deal with Iran, a deal that
would hurt our national security inter-
ests and sell out our proven ally and
friend, Israel.

Let’s be clear: Tran is a foe, not a
friend. Just consgider: last week, Iran’s
supreme leader said “death to Amer-
ica’’; the regime has blood of American
soldiers on its hands; and Iran is work-
ing overtime to expand influence in the
region.

Mr. Speaker, Iran 18 determined to be
a nuclear power, period. Unfortunately,

the President seems intent to ignore
the majority of American people who
believe this deal would not prevent
Iran from gaining a nuclear weapon.

Mr. Speaker, the President is going
rogue, That is wrong, He needs to stop.
Nothing less than our national security
is at sfake.

HONORING THE CITY OF MIAMI
BEACH

{Ms. WASSERMAN SCHULTZ asked
and was given permission te address
the House for 1 minute and to revise
and extend her remarks.)

Ms. WASSERMAN SCHULTZ, Mr.
Speaker, 1t is with great pride that I
rise today to recognize the 100th anni-
versary of the city of Miami Beach in
Florida’s 23rd Congressional District.

Inecorporated on March 28, 1916,
Miami Beach took its place on the map
with only a handful of residents. Now
home to nearly 100,000 people, the city
of Miami Beach has not only grown in
population, but in reputation. This va-
cation paradise is an internationally
recognized tourist destination visited
by millions each year, a hub for busi-
ness, and a trendsetter in the areas of
arts, culture, fine dining, and enter-
tainment.

This week, Miami Beach celebrated
its centennial with 100 hours of show-
caging 16s history and all that the city
has to offer, culminating in an ocean-
front concert by Miami Beach residents
and cultural icons Gloria Hstefan,
Barry Gibb, and Andrea Bocelli.

It 18 a great honor for me to rep-
resent the city of Miami Beach in our
Nation’s Capitol. I thank Mayor Philip
Levine, the members of the city com-
mission, and the city’s staff for their
many accomplishments that have made
the city of Miami Beach a wonderful
place to work, live, visit, and raise a
family,
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passed a historic piece of bipartisan
legislation that will put an end to the
flawed Medicare sustainable growth
rate, the so-called doc fix, and extend
the Children’s Health Imsurance Pro-
gram.

For more than a decade, Congress has
used a bandaid to address the sustain-
able growth rate, rather than offering
permanent reforms. Having served in a
nonprofit health care setting for nearly
three decades, I experienced firsthand
the ancertainty and the anxiety that
patients and their providers experi-
enced annually, wondering if draconian
cuts to reimbursements would ocecur.
This hipartisan, permanent solution
will replace the sustainable growth
rate with a more stable system that
will ensure our seniors do not lose ac-
cess to their healtheare providers.

Mr. Speaker, this legislation is by no
means perfect, but it is a move in the
right direction for children, seniors,
and cur medical providers.

VOTING RIGHTS

{Mr. HOYER asked and was given
permission to address the House for 1
minute and to revise and extend his re-
marks.)

Mr. HOYER. Mr. Speaker, we just
passed a bipartisan bill that addressed
an issue, as the previous speaker said,
that needed to be addressed.

Yesterday, Mr. Speaker, the Supreme
Court handed down a decision in Ala-
bama Legislative Black Caucus v. Ala-
bama which ought to give every Mem-
ber pause regarding the position that
Federal voting protections are no
longer needed to ensure that all Ameri-
cans can register and vote.

The Court found that Alabama legis-
lators may have drawn congressional
districts after the last census in a man-
ner that diluted the voting strength of
African American citizens. The Court
raised disturbing guestions, Mr. Speak-
er, about how African Americans are
represented in Alabama’s congressional
districts and returned the case to a
lower court for further consideration.

Mr. Speaker, we are a nation that
prides itself on its unflinching willing-
ness to confront its sins of segregation
and voter suppression thaf$ kept mil-
lions of Americans from participating
equally for generations.

On the same day the Court ruled, we
marked the 50fh anniversary of the
Selma marchers finally reaching Mont-
gomery. Such anniversaries are re-
minders of how much—or how little
progress—we have made to realize the
principles and rights embodied in our
Constitution.

With that in mind, Myr. Speaker, I
urge us to proceed, ag we did today, in
a bipartisan fashion to restore the Vot-
ing Rights Act to its full force and ef-
fect to protect all Americans., And I
urge my colleagues to work together to
bring the bipartisan Voting Rights
Amendment Act fo fthe floor and re-
gfore the full power of the Voting
Rights Act without delay.
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We acted in a hipartisan fashion
today. Let’s do it tomorrow on the Vot-
ing Rights Act.

BRAIN AWARENESS WEEK

(Mr, MCNERNEY asked and was
given permission to address the House
for 1 minute.)

Mr. MCNERNEY, Mr, Speaker, I rise
today to celebrate the 20th anniversary
of Brain Awareness Week.

Last week, neuroscientists from
around the world reached oul to stu-
dents and the public with educational
activities that helped illustrate the
wonders of the human brain. Since
1996, organizations around the world
have come together daring Brain
Awareness Week fo inform us about
brain research and hrain awareness,
about brain disorders and diseases that
affect nearly 100 million Americans.

The National Science Foundation has
supported a number of projects that
have led to discoveries in neuroscience.
These projects include gene editing
that allows scientists to understand
the biological origins of complex brain
disorders and provide new potential
treatments. On another front, increas-
ing the resolution of optical micro-
scopes has allowed scientists to view
the brain in more detaii and helped
them understand Alzheimer’s and Par-
kingon’s disease.

I urge my colleagnes to join me in
suppording Brain Awareness Week and
£0 support researchers in their own dis-
tricks who are working to improve pub-
lic health woridwide,

e ——
HEALTH CARE IN AMERICA

(Ms. JACKSON LEE asked and was
given permission o address the House
for 1 minute.)

Ms. JACKSON LEE. Mr. Speaker, we
just witnessed an opportunity that
should not be singular, and that is the
coming together of Members of the
United Stabtes Congress to address
gome very important issues.

I have already spoken on the impor-
tance of providing for the Children’s
Health Ingurance Program that this
legiglation, H.R. 2, has provided for and
securing Medicare for our seniors and
ensuring funding for our federally
gualified health clinics, the very clin-
ics that I advocated for so many years
ago. And we have seen a growth in
them. The ones that are in my congres-
sional districs, they opened their doors
to low-income and those without insur-
ance in years past.

We are trying to get in front of the
issue and the crigis of health care in
America. But I want to make sure that
as we pass this legislation, we do not
forget physician-owned hospitals,
which are prevalent in the Btate of
Taxas, and there are many in my
neighborhood, These are doctors who
have sacrificed to open fhe doors of
hospitals in low-income areas. It is im-
portant for CMS to make sure that
their applications are expeditiously
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and efficiently reviewed and that they
have the opportunity to expand. This is
language that we have put inte the Af-
fordable Care Act so the doors of these
hospitals can remain open to the sick
and those who are in neighborhoods
where access to health eare is nod
strong.

I ask my colleagues to continue &o
push forward on good health care in
America and to help physician-owned
hospitals in the way that they should
be under the Affordable Care Act.

—————————

REMEMBERING MARY EDWARDS

(Mr. VEASEY asked and was given
permission to address the House for 1
minute.)

Mr. VEASEY. Mr. Speaker, I rise
today to honor the life of a longtime
friend, Mary Edwards, a State Demo-
cratic executive committeewoman and
board member for Tarrant County
Stonewall Democrats.

Mary was born in Clarksville, a little
town next to Paris, and moved to Fort
Worth with her family when she was a
Kkid,

She dedicated her time to helping
others and making a difference to any-
one she came across. I can personally
attest to the leadership and activism
she displayed throughout the years in
the Fort Worth community, as well as
when ghe worked alongside longtime
former State Representative Lon
Burnam.

Mary also served in various roles in
the community. She was very active in
the LGBT community and was very
proud of her work. She was also a
member of the Communications Work-
ara of America. And she was very ac-
tive in the neighborhood that she lived
in.

My heartfslt sympathies goes out to
her younger brother, Longe, and her
niece, whom she greatly adored.

I can tell you, personally, that it is
going to he sad to go to the Democratic
meetings and pull up into the parking
lot and not see Mary’s big red truck
there. But I can attest to you that
while Mary was here, on this side, she
did everything she could to make life
hetter for others and truly, traly cared
for the community.

MISCONDUCT OF INSPECTOR GEN-
ERAL TODD ZINSER, COMMERCE
DEPARTMENT

(Ms. EDDIE BERNICE JOHNSON of
Texas asked and was given permission
to address the House for 1 minute and
to revise and extend her remarks.}

Ms. EDDIE BERNICE JOHNSON of
Texas. Mr. Speaker, the U.8. Congress
relies upon inspectors general, IGs, as a
key component of the Federal account-
ability community. When IGs them-
selves engage in illegal, unethical, or
inappropriate behavior, Congress has
an obligation to investigate them.

In the last Congress, the Committee
on Science, Space, and Technology
launched a bipartisan investigation of
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the Department of Commerce Inspector
CGeneral Todd Zinser. The evidence the
committee obtained regarding Mr.
Zinser's personal misconduct and pro-
fessional mismanagement of his office
is overwhelming.

Any one of the multiple issues high-
lighted in my extended remarks would
be gufficient to justify the removal of
this IG. This serious step is made nec-
egsary by the abundant and deeply dis-
turbing evidence that I am making
public today. It gives me no pleasure to
provide this account to the Congress,
bui I believe it i8 my obligation to re-
port on what we have found.

Todd J. Zinser has been the Inspector Gen-
eral of the Department of Commerce (DOC)
since December 2007. Prior to his present
post, he served as Acting 1G and Deputy 1G
at the Department of Transportaiion’s Office of
inspector General (OlG). He has had a thily
year carger in the federal accountability com-
munity.

Our Committee relies on the Commerce
IG's office to identify and investigate issues of
waste, fraud, abuse and mismanagement with-
in agencies under the Comimnittea's jurisdiction,
including the National Cceanic and Atmos-
pheric Administration (NOAA), which encom-
passas the National Weather Service (NWS)
and National Hurricane Center, as well as the
National Institute of Standards and Tech-
nology (NIST). The Committee also has wide-
ranging oversight jurisdiction over all non-mili-
tary research and development, which touches
upon cther components of the Department of
Commaerce.

{ssues relating to Mr. Zinser's conduct in of-
fice first came to the attention of the Com-
mittee in 2012. As some of you may recall, the
Chief Financial Officer at the National Weather
Service was removed after it was found that
he had established an improper and illegal
procass for moving tens of millions of dollars
across appropriated accounts at NWS in viola-
tion of the Anti-deficiency Act. Subsequently,
the then-head of the NWS also retired as a re-
sult of this scandal. The Committee learnad of
this improper conduct the same way the rest
of the world did: we read about it in the Wash-
ington Post on May 28, 2012

However, Inspector Generals are required
by the Inspector General Act to notify Con-
gress when they becoms aware of significant
problems in their agency. The [nspector Gen-
eral Act of 1978 as amended says very clearly
that it Is a purpose of the establishment of in-
spector generals that they are “to provide a
means for keeping the head of the establish-
ment and the Congress fully and currently in-
formed about problems and deficiencies relat-
ing o the administration of” that agency.

That act also directs that “[e}ach Inspector
General shall report immediately to the head
of the establishment involved whenever the in-
spector General becomes aware of particularly
gerious or flagrant problems, abuses, or defi-
ciencies relating to the administration of pro-
grams and operations of such establishment.
The head of the establishment shall transmit
any such report to the appropriate committees
or subcommittees of Congress within seven
calendar days, together with a report by the
head of the establishment containing any com-
ments such head deems appropriate.” Mr.
Zinser never suggested that he had followed
this provision and there is no evidence that
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the 1G ever communicated any report to the
Secretary of Commerce regarding ongoing
violations of the Anti-deficiency Act within the
National Weather Service.

In this case, Mr. Zinser did not notify our
Committee by any means that NWS had been
running a huge, illegal accounting scam. That
failure to notify came as a grave disappoint-
ment to me and to other Members of the
Committee. When staff met with Mr. Zinser to
understand what had happened in this case,
and the role of his office in the investigation,
they were astonished to learn that in Novem-
ber 2011 the 1G had concluded that a violation
of the Aniti-deficiency Act had likely occurred.
That meant that the |G went six months with-
out mentioning this significant matter fo the
Congress, letting us Instead leam of the issue
in the press.

In that meeting with staff, Mr. Zinser dis-
closed that he had no idea that his office had
received multiple tips regarding financial mis-
conduct at NWS., He admitted that his office
had actually misplaced some of these allega-
tions. The Commerce OIG received s first of
several Hotline complaints about this issue in
June 2010. Mr, Zinser also claimed he had no
idea that his audit staff were conducting an
examination of these allegations until a memo-
randum on the fopic—eleven months in the
making—hit his desk on November 18, 2011.
It seemed impossible that, with his years of
experience, he would have established a sys-
tem for receiving whistleblower tips that could
actually lose those tips. It also seemed impos-
sible that he could not know that his staff was
conducting a “preliminary audii” on matters in-
volving possible illegal activity by one of the
top officials at the NWS.

At the time, his office only had about 120
employees and misconduct at the National
Weather Service would be a very, very high
profile matter. Even If Mr. Zinser's account s
true—and my staff have gathered significant
evidence that Mr. Zinser is actually a micro-
manager who has been personally involved in
assignments of hofline complaints and held
waoekly roviews of ongoing work at the time,
back in 2011—such failings suggest an ex-
traordinary lack of personal engagement in the
work of his office and a serious lack of com-
petence in Mr. Zinser's management of signifi-
cant, potentially criminal, allegations.

Most surprising of all the things staff learnad
in this meeting was that Mr. Zinser declined fo
conduct a formal investigation into these finan-
cial improprieties even after he said he be-
came aware of them. Instead, the 1G gave the
investigation back to the agency. Given the
vast scope of the financial shenanigans that
occcurred at NWS over many years, it is rea-
sonable to gquestion whether others in the
agency knew about this conduct or played
some role in alfowing it to go on. In letting the
agency essenfially investigate itself on this vio-
lation of the law, the |G created a situation
where there could have been a cover-up. In
the end, the agency's report on this incident
found oniy one official—he NWS Chief Finan-
cial Officer—to have been responsible for
years of Hlegal accounting practices.

1Gs exist to cary out investigations pre-
cisely when allegations of illegal activity have
been made. Members and staff found it im-
possible io understand why the [G had failed
in what can only be described as a “core re-
sponsibility” to investigate this misconduct and
o keep the Congress informed. My staff has
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posed this scenario to several other 1Gs who
work at agencies in our jurisdiction, every one
of them has said they would never have given
such an investigation back to the agency.
Such a decision s inexplicable.

These failures to investigate a violation of
law, to inform the Congress of significant
issues at his agency, or fo effectively manage
his own office led to doubts among Commiftee
Members regarding Mr. Zinser's reliability as
an 1G. As a result, our staff began to examine
the work of Mr. Zinser's office in more detail.

Let me be clear: Mr. Zinser came to our at-
tention hecause of Mr. Zinsers own mis-
conduct. We know from sources on other
Committees as well as correspondence he
has sent, that he has {ried to explain away our
interest in his conduct as the result of former
IG staff with an ax to grind coming to us with
false storiss, or even that my own Committee
staff are personally hostile to Mr. Zinser. Noth-
ing could be further from the truth. Mr, Zinser
has only himself to blame for drawing our at-
tention to him.

In the wake of a hearing in which Members
heard directly from Mr. Zinser regarding his
mishandling of the NWS Anti-Deficiency Act
violations, my staff began looking into the IG's
hotling system. How could tips involving illegal
activily and the potential wasie of millions of
dollars get set aside without any action? While
the staff and Members were wondsring how
this bizarre conduct on the NWS could be ex-
plained, another item in the Washingten Post
caught our eye. Mr. Zinsers office was the
subject of a whistleblower retaliaticn complaint
that had been taken up by the Office of Spe-
cial Counsel {OSC)—the Federal govern-
ment's whistleblower protection office.

On December 3, 2012 the Washington Post
reported on this case because the OSC had to
iake the extracrdinary step of issuing instruc-
tions that Inspector General Zinser vacate a
gag agreement with the complainants. This
gag agreement, which OSC ultimately found
had been essentially extorted from the com-
plainants, had barred them from commu-
nicating about their experiences in Mr. Zinser's
office to the press, OSC or Congress.

This press account was every bit as shock-
ing as the revelations Mr. Zinser had made to
the Commitiee regarding his mishandling of
the NWS case. It seemed impossible that an
|G, or his top aides, would establish a gag
order to silence former staff from talking to the
press, the OSC, or Congress. That such a gag
order was the result of retaliation for sus-
pected whistlsblowing conduct by the former
employees made this situation even more dis-
wrbing. By law, IG offices are t¢ be a safe
haven for whistleblowers. That an 1G, or his
senior staff, would atternpt to punish and si-
lence whistleblowers within their own office
flies in the face of everything we expect of an
1G.

This story opened up new lines of commu-
nication between whislleblowers remaining in
Mr. Zinser's office and ocur staff. For the re-
mainder of the 113th Congress we worked to
understand how the office operated and why
50 many problems seemed to emerge from
the IG's office. Over iime, this initiaiive ex-
panded from work done solely by the Minority
staff of the Committes to become a fully bipar-
fisan investigation with participation by the Ma-
jority as well. My friend from Wisconsin, the
then-Vice Chairman of the Commities, Rep-
resentative SENSENBRENNER, was particularly
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important in driving the investigation forward
and forging a bipartisan efforf. Mr. SENSEN-
BRENNER has a long history of faking action to
protect whistleblowers.

| want to touch on some of the most out
rageous things that we uncovered during the
two years of our work. | may depart from a
chronological treatment in an effort to bring
the most disturbing elements io the attention
of the House in the most expeditious way.

For those who wonder how | know what [
am saying is true, let me share a summary of
the work our staft engaged in.

The staff interviewed more than 70 officials
who have worked for or with Mr. Zinser, in-
cluding more than 60 current or former Com-
merce OIG employees. The Committee has
also obtained thousands of pages of sup-
porting documentation, court records and
other svidence from informed sources. Most of
the material that has informed our investiga-
tion has come to the staff through whisile-
blowers sharing materials. Despite two bipar-
tisan document request letters in the last Con-
gress, Mr. Zinser provided very littte respon-
sive materal, particularly to our second re-
quest in August 2014 that spacifically focused
on the conduct of Mr. Zinser and some of his
senior most officials targeting whistieblowers
in his own office.

Coincidentally, and | will discuss this in
more detail later, six days—let me repeat, six
days--after Mr. Zinser received the Commit-
tee’s biparisan document request regarding
efforts to identify and retaliate against whistle-
blowers In his office, he was seen using his
personal hand-cart o remove two bankers
hoxes of materials from his office 10 his car on
a holiday weekend. Although we don't know
what was in those boxes, the timing of this re-
moval is extremely suspicious.

Committee staff has built a network of
sources thai provided accurate, contempora-
neous insights into actions within the office.
The stories and documents these whistle-
blowers provided paint a deeply disturbing pic-
ture of an IG’s office ruled by fear and intimi-
dation, where unethical conduct is rewarded at
the top, while the line staff are largely pre-
vented from conducting the good work ex-
pected of an IG's office.

Let me start by acknowledging two apparent
public successes of Mr. Zinser's: he produced
two reports in 2014 on misconduct at the U.S.
Patent and Trademark Office (PTO) that re-
ceived extensive press coverage and inspired
a joint hearing by the House Committee on
QOversight and Government Reform and the
House Judiciary Committee. Each of these
seeming successes, though, points to core
problems in the credibility of Mr. Zinser and
the work of his office.

On July 8, 2014, Mr. Zinser’s office released
an investigative report about the conduct of
Deborah Cohn, the Commissioner for Trade-
marks at PTO. The repott found that Commis-
sioner Cohn violated several federal laws re-
garding federal officials using their public of-
fice for an individual's private gain (6 C.F.R.
2635.702 and 702(a)), providing preferential
treatment to an applicant (5 U.8.C. 2302{b),
and 5 C.F.R. 2635.101{0)(8)), and violaling
federal ethics  violations (5 C.F.R.
2635.501(a)). What was Ms. Cohn’s offense?
She had intervened in a hiring decision to as-
sist her daughter's fiancé in getting a job.

in September, in the wake of the repor,
Deborah Cohn announced plans to refire by
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the end of 2014. According o her online bieg-
raphy, she worked at PTO for over 30 years,
and refired in January, 2015, At the time of
the release of the repori, 1G Zinser was
quoted in the press as saying the GIG inves-
tigation found Ms. Cohn exerted “undue inffu-
ence in the hirng process” and “intervened
and created an additional position specifically
for the applicant.” The Commeorce OIG report
also sald that beyond the letter of the law, the
PTO official’s actions “reflected poor judg-
ment.” The take away quote for the press: “As
a long-term senior manager in the federal gov-
ernment, she should have known about the
federal laws governing hiting and should have
steered clear of any appearance of impro-
priety,” the report said.

Ms. Cohn was wrong to have intervened in
this hiring case in the manner that she did, but
she is to be congratulated for choosing to re-
tire in the face of these significant findings that
called her judgement into question. But as my
staff learned, Mr. Zinser is really not in a vary
cradible posiiion to lecture anyone on hiring
irregularities.

Mr. Zinser has his own rather astounding
record of inappropriate hiring in the Commerce
1G’s office. For example, since coming io the
IG post in December of 2007, he personally
intervened to save the caresr of one of his
closest friends as it was imploding at the De-
partment of Transportation due to mismanage-
ment issues. This person is one of the same
people who ultimately had the OSC complaint
lodged against him that | referenced above.
Mr. Zinser also personally intervened to get
his own son’s friend an internship position in
the OIG and then directed his senior staff to
push the Department of Commerce Secusily
Office to issue credentials for the young man
when a security issue arose. The friend of Mr.
Zinser's son was eventually hired into a per-
manent position in the OIG with a starting sal-
ary of more than $42,000.

Most disturbingly, Mr. Zinser hired a woman
that substantial evidence and witness testi-
mony reveals was involved in a “romantic” re-
lationship with Mr. Zinser at the time he hired
her in August 2010. At that time, she was in
the middie of her probationary year as a can-
didate for the Senlor Executive Service (SES)
at an office within the Department of Com-
merce. Notified by her managers that she
would be removed from her SES probationary
position immediately due fo significant conduct
problems, she asked her supervisor if she
could have an extra day because “Todd
Zinser” would hire her. Mr. Zinser then per-
sonally intervened to have her detailed to his
office within days. This required a frartic push
among all levels of his oifice to get the paper-
work done and signed before her SES position
at DOC was vacated—which would have
washed her out of the SES probationary pro-

ram.
g Witnesses in the Commerce 1G’s office who
had been involved in the transfer say there
was an extreme, personal urgency in Mr.
Zinser's actions to have this employee de-
tailed to his office. In addition, the Committee
has confirmed that Mr, Zinser never contacted
this woman's former supervisors at the other
DOC agency where she worked to ascertain
why she was in the process of being removed
from her SES position. This would seem to
have been a reasonable action for anyone hir-
ing a person info an SES position, even more
so for an |G who routinely handles sensitive

March 26, 2015

personal information and criminal investiga-
fions,

The moming before the Department of
Commerce “officially” approved her detail to
the |G’s office, she was provided with a win-
dow office, desk, computer and phone in the
Commerce Office of Inspecior General, ac-
cording to former OIG employees and contem-
poraneous emails. In the wake of this effon,
the then-Director of Human Resources in the
IG's office e-mailed the Counsel to the IG:
“you can add illegal appointments to my an-
nual performance discussion. With [Todd's
son's friend] and this one, | am going to be an
entire series in the Washington post [sic].”

Within five wesks of being brought to the
OIG on detail, Mr. Zinser appolnted his friend
to the position of Assistant inspecter General
for Administration—a SES position that paid
$150,000 a year. Subsequently, Mr. Zinser di-
rectly approved three SES Performance Bo-
nuges for her from January 2011 to October
2012 totaling $28,199.

Let me be clear, | am not making any com-
ment on the qualifications or skills of the
woman hired by Mr. Zinser, and | am aftempt-
ing to fimit my comments about the broader
situation of their relationship out of sensitivity
for the feelings of innocent parties. However,
Mr. Zinser's personal conduct in this case is
deplorable. His conduct undermined the integ-
rity of the SES process and the Federal hiring
system more generally.

It is clear that he hired this intimate friend fo
do her a favor given her difficult professional
circumstances. No one infterviewed by the
Comimittee staff who worked in the iG’s office
at the time of her detail or subsequent ap-
pointment believes that she was hired be-
cause there was a pressing need for someone
with her skill set. The universal reaction
among the staff was that this behavior was
highly irregular, and right from the beginning
there were some in the office who had knowl-
edge of his relationship with this person. The
result was that rumors began immediately re-
garding this person’s special status. Witnesses
indicate she wislted unusual authotity in the
office due to the close nature of her relation-
ship to Mr. Zinser. This is the kind of per-
sonnel action that destroys the effectiveness
of an organization and that 1Gs themselves
often investigate.

The Committee has no more interest in Mr.
Zinser's private affairs than the Congress
would have in Ms. Cohn's daughter's fiance.
However, Todd Zinser just as blatantly entan-
gled his personal affairs with his public dufies
as Ms. Cohn had done when he used his po-
sition of trust to advance a romantic partner’s
position. This has created not simply ethically
iroubling behavior on his part but potential vio-
lations of federal law. His actions to further the
career of a romantic interest compromises the
credibility of the [G and his office to inves-
tigate fnappropriate hiring by others, even
when justified.

Mr. Zinser's press comment about Ms. Cohn
applies to him as well: “As a long-ierm senior
manager in the federal government, (h)e
should have known about the federal laws
governing hiring and shouid have steered
clear of any appearance of impropriety.” it
should go without saying that such a state-
ment is even more true of a person who the
Congress has placed in a law enforcement po-
gition. The difference between Cohn and
Zinser is that there is no G to hold Mr. Zinser
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accountable. That is a job for the Congress
and the President.

There is one more twist in this tale. In Janu-
ary 2011, an anonymous complaint about Mr,
Zinser's inappropriate hiring of the Assistant
IG for Administration was received by the
Council of the Inspectors Genetal on Integrity
and Efficiency (CIGIE). The complaint went to
their integrity Committee o investigate. On
February 22, 2011, CIGIE's Integrity Com-
mittee wrote to Mr. Zinser regarding the com-
plaint asking that he respond within 30 days.
On April 11, 2011, Mr. Zinser provided a writ-
ten response completely denying that there
was anything improper in his hiring of this
woman. He told CIGIE that he had a critical
need to hire sameona with her skills. In the
letter Mr. Zinser wrote, “. . . her assignment
was based solely on business necessity, not
on a personal relationship.”

As | mentioned, no one interviewed by
Committee staff who worked in the Commerce
IG’s office at the time believes she was hired
because there was a pressing need for some-
one with her skill set. The position of Assistant
IG for Administration had been vacant in the
Commerce OIG for over two years before it
was given to Mr. Zinser's romantic interest,
and numerous former OIG employees recall
that Zinser had refused to fill that position on
a number of occasions claiming he did not see
a need for i&. Not until his close friend was in
desperate nead of a job did Mr. Zinser dis-
cover a necessity to fill the post.

In addition, not a single record provided by
the Commerce |G in response to our Commit-
tee's July 2014 document request regarding
records related to Mr. Zinser's hiring of this
person supporis |G Zinser's declaration to
CIGIE that he hired her into the position of As-
sistant IG for Administration "based solely on
business necessity, not a personal relation-
ship.” There is no contemporansous record
confirming thai Mr. Zinser had basen pushing
for filling that position prior to the quick detail
of his inlimate friend to the office.

In his written response to CIGIE, Mr. Zinser
acknowledged that he did have a personal re-
lationship with his new Assistant Inspector
General for Administration, and that they were
“avid long distance runners and trained to-
gether on a fairly regular basis.” “Contrary to
the insinuations of the anonymous complaint,”
he wrote, “our relationship Is neither romantic
nor sexual in nature,” and while he said there
are no wles “against maintaining personal
friendships with colleagues or subordinates, fo
minimize any potential appearance of impro-
priety, we curtailed our running together” after
she came 1o his office. It may be frue that
their running relationship was “curtailed”, but
the staff has convincing evidence that other
aspects of their relationship, more pertinent to
the allegation, continued outside of the work
place after her hiring and were ongeing at the
time of the CIGIE inquiry.

in his response Mr. Zinser also suggested
to CIGIE that the anonymous complaint they
received was from his fifend’s husband who
was atternpting to use the complaint “as a tool
to gain advantage in divorce proceedings.” It
is true that this woman's husband filed for di-
vorce in March 2011—the divorce was granted
in January 2012—but it is not frue that her
now-former husband was the source of the
CIGIE complaint. Despite Zinser's speculation,
designed to throw the CIGIE Integrity Com-
mittee off his trail, Committee staff has spoken
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at length on multiple occasions 1o the indi-
vidual who filed the anonymous complaint.
The complainant is a person in the G commu-
nity not related to either Zinser's girlfriend or
hor former husband. This counter-allegation by
Mr. Zinser fits with a long pattern of behavior
he has displayed in trying to deflect criticism
or questions by making assertions about the
motivations or integrity of those who question
or challenge him.

As to the relationship between Mr. Zinser
and his Assistant IG for Administration, The
Washington Post asked Mr. Zinser about it for
an article they wrote about him on July 17,
2014. According to that article, “Zinser said
there was nothing improper about him hiring a
highly qualified manager who was a close per-
sonal fiend. He said the romantic nature of
their refationship predated her coming 1o work
for him.” Mr. Zinser seems to have forgotten
that he told CIGIE that there was no remantic
glement 1o their relationship.

The combination of misleading claims Mr.
Zinser made to CIGIE regarding both his rela-
tionship with the close friend he hired and the
“business” necessity of hiring her into his of-
fice appears fo be an intentionally false nar-
rative spun by Mr. Zinser to cover up his own
unecthical behavior. CIGIE's Integrity Com-
mittee accepted Mr. Zinser's explanation on
April 28, 2011 and closed the complaint with-
out further investigation. The Integrity Com-
mittee was operating in the dark regarding the
extensive evidence my own Commitiee’s staff
has obtained that this hiring was impropsr and
that Mr. Zinser was misleading them as to the
real facts of his conduct.

What have we learned from this case? That
Mr. Zinser has corrupted the Federal hiring
process and the Senior Executive Service ap-
pointment process. That Mr. Zinser was willing
to make false allegations about another to
avoid having to answer for his own actions.
That Mr. Zinser was willing to mislead the In-
tegrity Committee of CIGIE, a body estab-
lished to investigate questicnable aclivities or
mismanagement of 1Gs. That Mr. Zinser was
willing to lecture another senior official for con-
duct that is no more disturbing than his own.
All in all, this does not sound like the conduct
we should expect from an Inspector General.
We also have learned that Ms. Cohn was will-
ing to act with accountability for her actions--
she retired in the wake of the [G's report—
while Mr. Zinser clings fo his position in the
face of substantial evidence that he is not fit
o serve.

The second 2014 PTO repott by the DOC
I@’s office to capture public attention Involved
abuse of time and attendance practices. In
July 2014, the DOC OIG released a report en-
titled, “Review of Waste and Mismanagement
at the Patent Trial and Appeal Board,” CIG
Case 13-1077-1, U.S. Depariment of Com-
merce, Office of Inspector General, Office of
Investigations, July 28 2014. In a memo-
randum dated the same day, Zinser wrote to
the Under Secretary of Commerce for Intellec-
tual Property regarding their findings. Mr.
Zinser's summary of findings said, “Our inves-
figation uncovered waste in the PTAB that
persisted for more than four years (2009-13)
and resulted in the misuse of federal re-
sources totaling more than $5 million. The
bulk of the wasted resources related 1o
PTAB’s paralegais, who had insufficient work-
loads and considerable idle time during those
years.”
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According to the July 2014 OIG report as
many as 95% of the PTAB paralegals were in-
volved in the PTQ's Patent Hoteling Program
(PHP), the agency’s largest telework program.

This apparent successful report takes on a
different light when one realizes that in Feb-
ruary 2012 the Commerce OIG released an
audit of the PTO's Patent Hoteling Program
that labelled it a great success. The title of the
IG's audit report, “The Patent Hoteling Pro-
gram Is Succeeding as a Business Strategy,”
and news headlines at the time reporting on
the 1G's findings described how the IG audit
praised the PTO's telework program: “Tele-
working PTO employees process more pat-
ents, less expensive,” declared one headline.

It is difficult to know how auditors from the
IG’s office could have so completely missed
the signs of waste, fraud and abuse that have
now been widely identified in this program.
Just as hard to explain is why Mr, Zinser ini-
tially tumed these allegations over to the
agency 1o investigate, just as he had in the
NWS financial misconduct case. Again, there
may have been viclations of law, and the
sums of money involved were not insignificant.

On November 18, 2014 the House Over-
sight and Government Reform and Judiciary
Commitiees held a joint congressional hearing
about the PTO's telework program. During his
sworn testimony Mr. Zinser was asked by my
friend, Ms. Lofgren of California, why his office
umed the PTAB investigation back to the
PTO. His response was because “none of
those allegations made specific allegations
against specific individuals that would warrant
us opening up a criminal investigation,” he
said.

Mi. Zinser's statement was not accurafe,
however. One complaint that the 1G’s office re-
ceived on s Hotfine in February 2013 identi-
fied ONE DOZEN specific individuals at the
U.5. Patent Trial and Appeal Board (PTAB) by
name, including the chief judge of the Board
and two adminisirators, who were knowingly
approving non-production time of PTO sm-
ployees, according to the allegation. Despite
the fact that “specific allegations” were made
“against specific individuals” this complaint
was referred to PTO by tho Commerce QIG,
which requested PTO cenduct an adminisira-
tive inquiry.

The Commillee has learned that the PTO
did a thorough evaluation of the PTAB time
and attendance issues, substantiated the alle-
gations, concluded that there were problems
with fime and attendance reporiing, and that
steps should be taken to clean up the system
with significant savings possible.

The iG's staff received the PTO's audit re-
port of the PTAB time and attendance issuss,
and senior leadership at the IG's office real-
ized they could not claim the significant mone-
tary savings, in the mittions of dollars, associ-
ated with the PTO report because they can
only claim savings associated with their own
work. To attempt to take credit for those sav-
ings, the OIG launched an audit that re-did the
PTO's work. That OIG report was released in
July 2014 and received widespread media
coverage with story tittes such as “IG uncov-
ers substantial waste at USPTO, says para-
legals ‘paid o do nothing,”” and “This May Be
The Worst Abuse of Federal Telework Ever.”
Thus, to claim savings already identified by
the agency, the IG wasted staff lime and re-
sources on a repetitive audit, and then worked
the press o claim the credit for finding the
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problem. All this while conveniently forgefting
that nearly 2% years earlier, the |G was prais-
ing the very same telework program that he
{ater said had wasted money during that same
time period.

What does this case teach us? That Mr.
Zinser was willing to spend taxpayer dollars to
get the credit for saving taxpayer dollars. |t
also shows that he was willing to mislead a
senior Member of the House regarding why he
had initiafly passed on carrying out this inves-
tigation. Finally, Mr. Zinser promised lo pro-
vide documentation in response to Ms.
Lofgren’s questions, but in his submission for
the record he went back on that promise by
saying he would only provide those materials
it he received a letter from the Chairman of
the Committee.

ldentifying savings is important for this IG
because, on balance, Mr. Zinser is one of the
least productive IGs in the federal govern-
ment. According to the GAQ, which is working
to report on this office’s productivity based on
my request, the average Cabinet-level [Gs re-
covered $22.64 for each dollar they spent
from 2011 to 2013. By comparison, the Com-
merce OlG recovered just $4.18 for each dol-
lar it spent. In addition, 95% of the Commerce
OIG’s savings came from joint investigations
with other federal law enforcement agencies,
and so much of these savings were claimed
on work that may have been iled by another IG
or office.

Now, let me return to the story that gave ad-
ditional momentum to our investigative activi-
ties: the fate of the whistleblower retaliation
case before OSC. As | said, | learned of that
case through reading of it in the press in De-
cember of 2012, Much of my staffs subse-
quent work was about getting more informa-
tion regarding that case, which was bheing in-
vestigated by OSC. Everyone in this institution
knows that the Congress relies on whistle-
blowers 1o do our oversight work. I1Gs are in
the same position: they must be frusted by
whistleblowers or they will not learn of prab-
lems in their agency. Congress feels so
strongly about this that there is an entire sec-
tion in the 1G Act, Section 7, which addresses
the role of IGs in receiving allegations and in
protecting whistleblowers from refaliation. The
idea that senior officials in the 1G’s office
would retaliate againsi whistleblowers is incon-
ceivable, but that is what the OSC case sug-
gested happened in Mr. Zinser's office.

To its credit, OSC worked that case very,
very diligently. The OSC issusd a report in
September 2013 that found Mr. Zinser's two
closest aides—his legal counsel and the Prin-
cipal Assistant Inspector General for Investiga-
tions and Whistleblower Protection—had en-
gaged in what amaunted to a coordinated ef-
fort to gag whistleblowers in the 1G's own of-
fice from reporting misconduct to the O8C, the
Congress or the press.

The OSC's “Report an Prohibited Personnel
Practices” concluded: “In this matter, OSC’s
invastigation uncovered willful, concerted acts
of retaliation that necessitate disciplinary ac-
tion. Holding management accountable for en-
gaging in prohibited personnel practices is es-
sential to assuring employees that they can
blow the whistle or engage in other protected
activity without fear of reprisal.”

According to the OSC report: “The record is
also replete with evidence establishing that
PAIGI [Rick] Beitel retaliated against the whis-
tleblowers by drafting their unfounded failing
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interim performance appraisals. . . . The evi-
dence demonstrates that PAIG] Beitel was
motivated to retaliate against the whistle-
blowers for their engagement in protected
activity andfor their perceived whistle-
blowing. . . . PAIGI Beite!s behavior is par-
ticularly egregious based on his posilion as
the OIG's expert on whistleblower protection,”
the OSC determined.

While the OSC could find no “decumentary
avidence" that Mr. Zinser was involved in the
case, every member of Mr. Zinser's staff that
the Committee staff has spoken with who had
experience of Mr. Zinser's management prac-
tices indicates that he rarely writes his direc-
tions down, instead relying on face-io-face
meetings and oral directions. These withesses
also indicate that the PAIGI, Mr. Beitel, would
never act on something this significant without
clearing it with the 1G. This is the same close,
personal frisnd whase career Mr. Zinser saved
by bringing him in from the Department of
Transportation. The two had worked together
since the early 1980s and were perceived by
staff across both |G offices to have a very
close working relationship of a mentor and
mentee. In couri documents unrelated to their
federal employment Rick Beitel acknowledged
that Todd Zinser was his “close friend and
personal confidant” and that they routinely so-
cialize with one another outside of work.

Mr. Zinser took no significant steps to pun-
ish either his good friend Rick Beitel or the
other Commerce OIG official after receiving
the OSC report. As a result of the OSC inves-
tigation and findings IG Zinser agreed to take
fwelve minimal actions, including the destruc-
tion of the coerced “interim performance ap-
praisals” the whistieblowers were forced into
signing, Mr. Beitel was removed from “super-
visory” duties for one year, both officials were
required to take “performance counseling,”
and the Commerce GIG was required to hire
an “empioyee relations” specialist.

But two officials who had used their position
to threaten to destroy the professional careers
of whistieblowers if they did not agree to gag
orders denying them access to the Congress
or the OSC should really not be in senior lead-
ership positions in any office of the govern-
ment, and especially not in an IG's office. That
is my strong view, and 1 am not alons in think-
ing so.

After receiving a copy of this report and
learning that no significant punishment had
been meted out by Mr. Zinser, all seven Mem-
bets of our Subcommittee on Oversight—four
Republicans and three Democrats—wrote 10
Mr. Zinser on April 1, 2014. The real driving
force in pushing this letter was my friend, Mr.
Sensenbrenner. The lelter said that Mr. Zinser
should “immediately terminate” the two senior
Commerce OIG officials who were found by
OSC to have engaged in prohibited perscnnel
practices against whistieblowers in his office.

Mr. Zinser responded on Aprif 15, 2014, ex-
pressing doubts about the credibility of OSC'’s
work and the legal basis for their findings. In-
credibly, Mr. Zinser reiterated all of the know-
ingly inaccurate claims aboui the whistle-
blowers—essentially repeating the lies that
OSC had found Mr, Beitel to have concocted
to damage their careers and reputations. OSC
thoroughly documented those cfaims to be in-
appropriate, misleading and simply false. Nev-
ertheless, Mr. Zinser knowingly used those
false claims again, further defaming his former
employees.
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This was not the first time Mr. Zinser had
used these false, derogatory allegations to
protect his office from tough gquastions. On
January 7, 2013, Mr. Zinser wrote a b2 page
letter to then Congressman Frank Wolf, Chair-
man of the Subcommittee on Commerce, Jus-
tice, Science, and Related Agencies of the
Committee on Appropriations. Mr. Wolf had
raised guestions regarding the OSC investiga-
tion that was then underway.

Mr. Zinser's letter defended the actions of
his two top aides and reiterated the false alle-
gations they had made against whistleblowers
in the 1G’s office as if those claims were
unshakable truths. For someone who claimed
to OSC that he knew nothing about his aides’
actions, Zinser seamed very comfortable de-
fending their behavior and attacking the vic-
tims.

It is important to note that even after the
0OSC report found that there was no merit to
any of these allegations, Mr. Zinser continued
to leave his letter to Chairman Woif up on his
public web site, perpetuating false claims that
defamed innocent former employees, and
standing as a warning sign to other whistle-
blowers that their reputations were at risk
should they challenge Mr. Zinser.

After this spirited defense of his closest staff
and his refusal to take any noteworthy steps
to punish them for their significant misdeeds
aven in the wake of OSCs findings, Mr. Zinser
suddenly changed direction in August 2014
when he anncunced that both officials were to
be placed on leave and a decision about ter-
mination would be made within 30 days. in the
end, Mr. Zinser's legal counsel was terminated
and his PAIGI—and close friend—was allowed
to retire. This was a dramatic 180 degree turn
from his previous public statements about the
actions of these top aides.

Despite his ouirageous conduct and
botched management choices, Mr. Zinser was
not found by OSC in their 2013 report to have
known about the treatment of the whistle-
blowers. The OSC, however, was careful to
say they found no “documentary evidence” re-
garding Mr. Zinser's knowledge of the actions
of his two senior most staff. This lack of docu-
mentation saved him from any personal con-
sequences as a result of the QSC report.

However, | belisve it is important to tell my
colleagues that Mr. Zinser had bgen named in
a prior OSC report. That eatlier report found
he had personally engaged in retaliation
against a whistleblower in his office. The simi-
larities between the 1996 case and this 2013
case—both built around a concocted tissue of
lies to remove or silence a whistleblower—are
striking enough to suggest that perhaps OSC
shotld have looked harder for evidence of Mr.
Zinserls involvement in the more recent case.

The Committee has uncovered a 1996 case
in which Todd Zinser, then the Deputy Assist-
ant IG for Investigations at the Department of
Transportation Office of Inspector General
(DOT OIQ), personally retaliated against Mr,
John Deans. We have all the relevant filings
and my staff has even spoken with Mr. Deans.
Retired from law enforcement now, at the time
of this case Mr. Deans was a former FBI
agent working as a DOT OIG GS5-12 Special
Agent, criminal investigaior. Deans was as-
signed to the Denver office, and while there
he found what he believed to be compelling
svidence that federal funding for the Denver
Internaticnal Alrport was being illegally redi-
rected to support local projects.
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Peans briefed Mr. Zinser and two other
DOT OIG officials on his case. Importantly,
Deans suggested to others that very senior
Federal officials may have heen aware of this
possible diversion of federal funds.

Mr. Zinser travelled to Denver a few days
after he learned of Deans’ comments about
the potential knowledge of senior Federal offi-
cials regarding this alleged diversion. Soon
after, Mr. Zinser flew to San Francisco to see
if the Special-Agent-in-Charge (SAC) of the
San Francisco office of the DOT OIG would
be willing to have Deans detailed to his office.
It is not clear what Zinser fold the Special
Agent in Charge about Deans but the Special
Agent advised Zinser to have an “impartial in-
vestigator” look into the allegations against
Deans. Instead, Mr. Zinser decided to inves-
tigate the Deans matter himself, Zinser had
Mr. Deans transferred to San Francisco, then
frad him placed on administrative [eave and ul-
timately had him fired.

In response to Mr. Zinser's actions, Deans
appealed to the Office of Special Counsel
(QO8C), which supported his complaint that this
was retaliation for his work. GSC sought a
stay of the transfer of Deans to San Fran-
cisco. On the same day the Morit Systems
Protection Beard (MSPB) ordered that Mr.
Deans be returned to his post in Denver, Mr.
Zinser placed Deans on administrative leave.

Todd Zinser's behavior was considered so
outlandish by the OSC that the Office filed a
“Petition for Enforcement” against Tedd Zinser
with MSPB. OSC asked that, “The [Merit Sys-
tems Protection] Board should order Zinser fo
immediately assign Deans the duties of his
former GS-12 special agent, criminal invest-
gator, position. Moreover . . . the Board
should order that Todd Zinser not receive pay-
ment for service as an employee from May 23,
18996, until Deans is returned to his former po-
sition, i.e., until the agency complies with the
Board's May 23, 1896, Opinion and Qrder.”

What did OSC think of the substance of the
case Mr. Zinser had made against Deans 1o
justify his actions? They thoroughly inves-
figated Mr. Zinser's claims—reinterviewed wit-
nesses, collected documents and deposed the
principal players. OSC found, “(A)s addressed
in detail below, the evidence established that
the specitic charges that formed the basis for
Deans’ removal are unsupportable. . . . The
avidence does not support any of these alle-
gations. On the other hand, it is clear that
Deans’ removal was ordered at the behest of
Deputy Assistant Inspector General {DAIG) for
Investigations Tod[d] Zinser, who strongly ob-
jected to Deans’ protected conduct.”” OSC in-
vestigators in 1996 concluded that Mr. Zinser's
actions towards Deans were “draconian in na-
ture” and “motivated by animus.” They deter-
mined Mr. Zinser took these actions because
Deans “discovered viclations and politically
embarrassing information about high-level
government officials and community leaders.”

As a result of these findings against Mr.
Zinser, Deans had to be rehired and restored
to a post in Denver. Deans was repaid almost
a year of back pay and benefits. On top of
this, the govemment had to pay over $10,000
in Mr. Deans’ attorney {ges. In short, the tax-
payer had to pay the bill for Mr. Zinser's out-
rageous and indefensible conduct towards this
whistlebiower.

Mr. Speaker, i is reasonable for Members
to wonder how someone with this kind of his-
tory of abuse against a whistleblower could
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possibly have been confirmed by the Senate
to the post of Inspector General. | wondered
that too. it turns outf, based on witness testi-
mony and extant documents, that Mr. Zinser
never disclosed the OSC case fo either the
White House or the Senate during his con-
firmation process.

The Senate routinely submils questionnaires
to potential 1Gs with questions that must be
filled out. That questionnaire asks about legal,
ethical or other cases that the Committee
should be aware of in considering his nomina-
tion. In response to that specific question Mr.
Zinser wrote, *1 have never been disciplined or
cited for a breach of ethics.” The question-
naire also asked: “Please advise the Com-
mittee of any additional information, favorable
or unfavorable, which you fee! should be dis-
closed in connection with your nomination.”
Mr. Zinser wrote simply “None.”

None? A potential IG does not think it is rel-
evant to the confirmation process o acknowl-
edge that he was found to have engaged in
prohibited personnel practices? Mr. Zinser was
asked by a Washington Post reporter why he
did not disclose this case during his confirma-
tion. In a story on Mr, Zinser published by the
Washington Post on July 17, 2014, Mr. Zinser
told the Post that he did not disclose the case
because, “| just never thoughti of myself as a
subject [of the investigation], although mayhe
| was”.

More recently, in January 2015, Mr. Zinser
responded to a Question For the Record
{QFR) from my friend, Ms. LOFGREN, regarding
the same matter. In that response, Mr. Zinser
gave a lawyerdy answer, “if is my under-
standing that the subject [of the investigation]
was the Department of Transportation, Office
of Inspector General.” Technically that is true
because under the law, cases filed with the
OSC name the office that is responsible for
the alleged misconduct, not the individual.
Similarly, lawsuits filed against an agency
name the head of the agency in their official
capacity regardiess of whether that official has
any personal knowledge of the matter or not.
However, this artful response suggests that
the case had nothing to do with Mr. Zinser.
Let me be clear: The case only exisied be-
cause of Mr. Zinsers personal misconduct,
and he was squarsly the subject of the allega-
tions of prohihited personnel practices.

The OSC's key document in the John
Deans case—the OSC’'s “request for stay”’—
refers to Todd Zinser BY NAME 53 separate
times in a 26-page report. In addition, this
document makes it exceedingly evident that
Todd Zinser was the sole individual in the De-
partment of Transportalion 1G's office who was
believed to have refaliated against John
Deans. Looking at the OSC records, it is evi-
dent that the Office found Mr. Zinser person-
ally investigated Deans, personally con-
structed unsupported findings against Deans
to be used to justify adverse employment ac-
tions, personally ordered those actions, and
personally resisted setting things right when
OSC and the MPRB ordered the DOT OIG to
do so. Of all the employees at the DOT OIG’s
office, only Todd Zinser was singled out by
OS¢ for punishment by way of seeking that
his salary be withheld.

The 1996 case was specifically built on Mr.
Zinsers misconduct just as the 2013 report by
OSC is specifically about misconduct by Mr.
Zinser's iwo closest (now former} aides. Hagd
Mr. Zinser divulged his role in the Deans case
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at the time of his confirmation, it is highly un-
likely he would have been confirmed as the
Commerce Inspector General. The actions
taken by Mr. Zinser in the John Deans case,
and described in detail in the OSC documents,
are all antithetical to the behavior and ethical
grounding that the public deserves and that
Congress expects of an Inspector General. He
showed no remorse about his conduct at that
time. Similarly, he showed no sympathy for
the victims of his aides’ abuse in 2013, His ini-
fial reaclion to the 2013 report was to protect
those officials from the consequences of their
actions as documented in the OSC report. He
maintained that position for months, even
under pressure from the Committee on
Science, Space & Technology where | am the
Ranking Member,

For any IG to be associated with two whis-
leblower retaliation cases of this kind would
be an indelible stain on their reputation. How-
ever, as my siaff talked to more amployses of
the IG's office, we leamed that these iwo
cases do not mark the end of whistleblower
retaliation at his office. We know of other re-
cent instances of Mr. Zinser expressing his
belief that specific individuals that he person-
ally named were cooperating with our Com-
mittee or making protected complainis to
OSC. We also know that these individuals
were iargeted in different ways for adverse ac-
tions in order to convince them to feave or fo
remove them from the office. Separately, one
senior OIG official was placed on “Administra-
tive Leave” immadiately after they contacted
the Office of Special Counsef. That individual
has since left the [G's office for another fed-
eral agency. We also know that the current
Deputy Inspector General had, as of several
months ago, obtained and retained the entire
email records of two former and one current
high level 1G staff, including two of her prede-
cessors—all of whom were viewed by Mr,
Zinser as disloyal to him or untrusiworthy with
the secrets of his office. One of those prede-
cessors is a sitfing, Senate-confirmed inspec-
tor General at another Federal agency.

There is no legitimate reason to have col-
lected and then retained the emnails of those
three senior staff, including two former Deputy
1Gs. There is certainly no justification for the
current Deputy 1G, widely viewed as being the
closest current personal aide to Mr. Zinser, to
be carrying those records on her faptop com-
puters hard drive. What would such records
be used for? It is impossible to know, but we
do know that there was a search and analysis
of one of those former Deputy IG's email
records. A memorandum was prepared based
on that search documenting the exchanges
between the former-Deputy and a woman who
had applied for a position within the OIG, who
was a family friend. Mr. Zinser was clearly
aware of this relationship since the woman
was a reference for the former Deputy 1G who
was cafled as a reference by Mr. Zinser when
the former Deputy IC applied for his job.

Based on information obtained by Com-
mittee staff it seems clear that Mr. Zinser was
simply searching for anything he might un-
cover in his former Depuly’s emalls that Mr,
Zinser might be able to use against him, since
the former Deputy had fallen out of favor with
Mr. Zinser.

When employee emails are to be pulied,
there is a policy in place at the DOC Office of
Inspector General that requires Mr. Zinser to
personally sign a memorandum to the Chief
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Information Officer requesting specific mate-
rials be produced. This policy has been in
place since October 2012. However, in the
last year, In particular, this policy has been
largely set aside, permilling other OIG staff in
Mr. Zinser's chain of command o authorize
the collection of Commerce OIG employees’
e-mails invoking Zinser's authority and with his
clear knowledge and, in some cases, specific
direction but without his actual signature. That
occurred in the case of the former Deputy 1G.

The IT staff in the IG's office has had to
comply with these requests even though they
violate a policy Mr. Zinser himself put in place.
This is an example of a long-standing issue in
Mr. Zinser's management style—he estab-
lishes policies and then ignores or stretches
them without any warning to those who work
for him. This creates an environment where it
is easy for the 1G to claim someone has vio-
fated policy if he wants to punish them be-
cause the policy environment is constantly and
mysteriously shifling.

The pulls of email records, the targeting of
suspected whistleblowers, the adverse em-
ployee actions 1aken in retaliation for protected
disclosures are all widely known and dis-
cussed by employees within the Department
of Commerce OIG’s office. We have heard
from many whistleblowers that they fear that if
Mr. Zinser is not removed, there will be—in
the words of more than one of these individ-
uals—"a bloodbath”—in the office. As soon as
Mr. Zinser believes no one is looking, he will
begin to take steps to invent allegations
against individuals he wants to rotaliate
against—as he did against Mr. Deans and as
his close aides did against OIG investigative
staff in 2011—the case which led to the 2013
OSC report—and then iake steps io remove
them. People are frightened, and given Mr.
Zinsers prior conduct they have good reason
to fear him and his potential actions.,

The last whistieblower issue | wish to raise,
Mr. Speaker, is that Mr. Zinser has let his of-
fice fall out of compliance with the U.5. Code
33 specifically, 5 U.S. Code §2302 (prohibited
personnel practices). That provision estab-
lishes the Office of Special Counsel's (0SC’s)
2302(c) Certification Program and requires
that Federal agency managers participate in
training regarding the rights of whisileblowers
and their right to make protected disclosures.

Last year the White House direcied agen-
cies to take affirmative sieps to complete the
OSC cortification program. According to the
Commerce OlG's own web-site “That provi-
sion charges ‘{tlhe head of each agency’” with
responsibility for “ensuring (in consultation
with the Office of Special Counsel) that agen-
cy employees are informed of the rights and
remedies available 10 them” under the prohib-
itad personnel practice and whistleblowsr re-
taliaiion protection provisions of Title 5. As
the head of the 1G’s office it is Todd Zinsers
responsibility to ensure his office is certified
under this program. The Commerce OIG web-
site currently states “OlG has been certified
by the U.S. Office of Special Counsel (OSC)
for conducting training and promoting aware-
ness of provisions of the Whistieblower Pro-
tection Act, 5 U.S.C. §2302(c).”

However, the OSC has confirmed to Com-
mittee staff that the Commerce OIG's whistle-
blower protection certification required under 5
U.S. Code §2302 lapsed in September 2014.
Six months later the Commerce IG's office still
has made no attempts to recertify. According
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to multiple Commerce OlG sources as well as
documentary evidence obtained by the Com-
mittee, Mr. Zinser's new Deputy IG Morgan
Kim has specifically directed muitiple OIG staff
not to attempt to recertify.

i wish that | could provide more definitive
accounts of all the misconduct that has been
going on in Mr. Zinser's office, but the truth is
that Mr. Zinser refused to comply with the
Committee’s document requests. Mr. Zinser
and his Deputy IG actively worked to obstruct
the Committee’s investigation. These two top
officials have been behind a campaign to in-
timidate staff into not cooperating with the
Commitiee by pushing some to get lawyers,
even though they were not the target of the in-
vestigation, and by reminding people that if
they say something quotable during interviews
with the Committee it may end up in the
Washington Post or a Committee Repori.

One individual widely known within the of-
fice to be particularly close to Mr. Zinser pres-
sured OIG staff to call the Committee to report
the “positive” aspects of Mr. Zinser's manage-
ment. Several individuals have told the Com-
mittee they felt this was both completely inap-
propriate and an attempt to coerce individuals
into taking part in these efforts to obstruct the
Committee’s investigation,

1G Zinser has also attempted to “paper” the
Committee with a voluminous production of
materials wildly unresponsive to our document
requests. Since the Committee’s August 2014
request letter, the Commitiee has received
less than two boxes of responsive materials
and 17 boxes of completely unresponsive ma-
terial. Some material provided showed a com-
plete lack of concern for their contents for they
included sensitive personally idenfifiable infor-
mation, such as social security numbers of
Commerce OIG employees, private phone
numbers and birthdates.

Meanwhile, we know that the materials we
were seeking were going through an extraor-
dinarily slow search and review process within
the OIG. None of that material was ever deliv-
ered to the Committee. Committee investiga-
tors cannot recall any comparable example of
such a complete failure to comply with a docu-
ment request—even from private parties—
across a quarter century of Committes inves-
tigations. The idea that an Inspector General,
who has an obligation to cooperate with Con-
gress that goes beyond that expected of any
other Executive branch official, would fail to
comply with a request from a Committee of
the House is simply unfathomable.

The Committee sent two bipartisan docu-
ment request letters to G Todd Zinser on July
18, 2014 and August 26, 2014. The July letter
requested documents related to Mr. Zinser's
inappropriate hiring of the former Assistant 1G
for Administration and Rick Beitel, including
coples of relevant records from his personal
work journals. The letter warmned Mr. Zinser:
"These journals represent official records and
we remind you that such records should not
be removed from the office nor tamperad with
in any way. The Committee intends to con-
tinue to examine the conduct and productivity
of your office, and we consider your journals
to be important evidence in that effort,” the let-
ter said. On August 26th the Committee sent
a second letter 1o |G Zinser demanding docu-
ments concerning multiple allegations that Mr.
Zinser was inappropriate collecting and moni-
toring his employees’ e-mails in a hunt for po-
tential whistleblowers in his office.
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Six days after IG Todd Zinser received that
second letter informing him of the Committee’s
knowledge that he was hunting for whistle-
blowers in his own office, the Inspector Gen-
eral was seen using his personal hand-truck fo
remave two banker's boxes of materials to his
car. This occurred on Labor Day, Monday,
September 1, 2014, a federal holiday when
few witnesses would have been on site at the
Department of Gommerce. Furthermere, the
Commitiee has evidence that |G Zinser con-
ducted his removal of this materiel with great
haste. He was in and out of his office with his
two boxes of material inside of 30 minutes. Al-
though there is no way to know what Mr.
Zinser removed from his office over Labor Day
waekend, the timing of his actions is highly
suspicious and raises serious questions about
his efforts to obstruct the Committee’s inves-
tigation.

The Committes is aware of at least one
more incident where records were removed
from his office and destroyed. Since he is
under a microscops, actions of removing or
destroying records canrnot heip but be seen as
obstructionist in nature and his cavailer dis-
regard for the effects of this on his reputation
and the opinion of cthers—even senior mem-
bers of a Committee with broad jurisdiction
over his Department—highlights the serious
mismatch between Mr. Zinser and the ethical
and professional requirements of serving as
an Inspector General.

Mr. Zinser also invoked attorney-client privi-
tege fo prevent witnesses from fulfilling their
obligation to speak to the Commiittee, and to
withhold matenials responsive o our request.
As a commen law, non-Constitulionally de-
rived concept, attorney-client privilege is not
recognized by Congress as a legitimate rea-
son to withhold information during Congres-
sional inguiries. While | understand that pri-
vate parties sometimes have a parlicular con-
cern with defending this privilege, i cannot
fathom how a Senate-confirmed government
employee, using goveimnment lawyers paid with
tax dollars, can think that the work of those at-
torneys could be considered privileged from
review by Congroess.

Never in the last gquarter century of Com-
mittee investigations has an official in a stalu-
torily-established Federal office attempted to
withhold materials or testimony using this
claim of attorney-client “privitege.” The usual
accommodation is for an agency to provide
the racords or teslimony, while noting that
they believe the materials shouid be treated
with care. Frankly, OIG attorneys are routinely
released from this privilege in order o cooper-
ate with OSC and EEQO investigations. The
Congress should not be treated any less co-
operatively than those offices, but Mr. Zinser
would not release the attorneys to answer
questions. His former counsel, who had been
found by OSC to have engaged in prohibited
personnel practices, very much wanted to
speak with the Committee as he believed he
had evidence that might exonerate him as well
as implicate Mr. Zinser. 1G Zinser specifically
intervened to prevent this former employee
from talking to Committee staff about Hlegal
activities that he believes he had wilnessad
during his work for Mr. Zinser. This misuse of
attorney-client privilege, with a hidden threat fo
seek punishment by the Bar if an attorney de-
cided their obligation to the Constitution out-
weighed Mr. Zinser's personal desire, is clear-
Iy abusive and appears motivated by a desire
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to hide evidence of his misconduct from the
Congress.

| have not reached the end of the account
of failed management and misconduct by Mr.
Zinser. Just last month, the Department of
Commerce’s Office of Civil Rights issued its
findings in an Equal Employment Opportunity
(EEQ case related to age discrimination and
retaliation filed by a former Commerce QIG
employee. The detailed 282-page report found
that the Commerce OIG discriminated against
the complainant in viclation of the Age Bis-
crimination in Employment Act of 1967 and re-
taliated against him for filing his EEOC com-
plaint  in violation of non-retaliation provisions
of Title VIl of the Civil Rights Act of 1864,” the
Age Discrimination in Employment Act of 1867
and “in violation of the EEOC regufations pro-
hibiting retaliation.” In swom testimony to
EEOC investigators regarding the monitoring
and examination of the former employee’s e-
mails and files, the EEOC also found that Mr.
Zinser's "testimony does not fully mesh with
the documentary evidence. . . .*

The Commerce OIG has been ordered to
compensate the employee for “backpay to
remedy the change to lower grade he tock
due to the haostile work environment” in the
IG’s office; expunge its official files of the inac-
curate interim performance appraisal the em-
ployee was coerced into signing and any re-
lated document; provide all supervisors in the
Commerce OIG, including the G and Deputy
IG, with at least 8 hours of EEO training and
require G Todd Zinser to sign and post (for
60 days) a notice to all OlG employees that
the office has been found in violation of age
discrimination and retaliated against former
Commerce OIG employes. The notice states
that the OIG will abide by federal require-
ments, equal employment opportunity laws
and will not retaliate against employees who
file EEO complaints in the futtre. The notice
is supposed to be placed in center within the
IG’s office or on the OIG intranet and is re-
quired 10 be signed by 1G Zinser. Mr. Zinser
refused for two solid weeks to sign that notice.
Only after my friend, Mr. Honda, asked |G
Zinser about this matter during an appearance
hefore the Appropriations Committee did Mr.
Zinser finally sign the notice on February 25.

Not for the first time, Mr. Zinser is going to
rely on the faxpayer to cover the cosis of his
misconduct, There are more claims out there
that will also cost the taxpaver to defend
against and settle. In fact, during the last wo
years six employees in the iG's office have
filed complaints of retaliation with the Office of
Spacial Counssl. The Department of Energy's
O1G, which is nearly twice as large as the
Commerce IG's office has had zero com-
plaints of retalfation filed with OSG during this
same period. The Depariment of Health and
Human Services (HHS) OIG, which has a staff
of more than 1,200 people and is neartly seven
times the current size of the Commerce OIG
had a single alleged case of retaliation filed
with OSC in the same time frame.

The issues | have identified reveal an en-
demic failing in Mr. Zinser's leadership. There
is a sustained pattern of misconduct and mai-
feasance that would be unacceplable in any
senior federat official but is paricularly trou-
bling for an Inspector General. Based on the
exhaustive work by Gommiitee staff, as well
as Mr. Zinser's representations to other Mem-
bers, we have convincingly shown that:

Buring his Senate confirmation for the Com-
meice 1G post, Mr. Zinser falled 1o disclose a
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sipnificant case against him involving his per-
sonal retaliation against a whistleblower;

Over a pericd of many years, Mr. Zinser
and his closest staff have engaged in efforts
to identify and retaliate against whistleblowers
in his office;

Mr. Zinser has repeatedly misled the Con-
gress about his conduct, and took steps to ob-
struct the Committee’s investigation into alle-
gations of misconduct;

Mr. Zinser has been disingenuous in his offi-
cial correspondence with the Council of the In-
spectors General on Integrity and Efficiency
(CIGIE) regarding inappropriate hiring in his
office;

Mr. Zinser has failed to conduct himself by
ethical standards expected of an Inspector
General;

Mr. Zinser has engaged in inappropriate hir-
ing practices that undermine the integrity of
federal hiring; and,

Mr. Zinser has failed to establish policies
and procedures in his office that would guar-
antee accountability and efficiency.

Mr. Speaker, how can this person still hold
a high position of public trust? His continued
presence in Federal service stands as a blot
on our record, in that we have tolerated such
conduct by an 1G. We could impeach him, and
| believe there is adequate information fo jus-
tify that. However, It would be time consuming
and expensive, and while we worked through
that process, the taxpayer would still be pay-
ing the senior leadership of DOC OIG, and
whistleblowers would still be legitimately wor-
ried for their caroers. That is unacceptable.

We could ask CIGIE to redo the invesiiga-
tion my staff and the Commitiee did in the
113th Congress. | respect the CIGIE, but the
cold truth is that CIGIE's Integrity Committee
is slow moving, and their prior failure to do
diligent work into a serious atlegation against
Mr. Zinser leads me to question their respon-
siveness—or at least the responsiveness they
displayed four years ago. And as with im-
peachment, it would bo slow and expensive
and whistleblowers would stand in danger
every day the process dragged on.

The law provides that the President can re-
move an G without any requirement that
CIGIE has first done an investigation. If an IG
conducts themselves in an oufragecus and
disreputable way, it would be iresponsible to
leave them in office once that has been estab-
lished. {1 believe that Mr. Zinser's wide-ranging
misconduct, suppotted by just a tiny coterie of
current senlor siaff, is sufficient in and of itself
to justify immediate removal. | intend to ask
the President to do just that.

Mr. Speaker, | believe | have established
the need for immediate change in the senior
leadership of this office. The current leader-
ship must be replaced with individuals who
can serve as beacons of integrity and stew-
ards of appropriate and diligent federal over-
sight. If any Member wants a fuller recounting
of the evidence in this case, | will be happy to
provide them with additional information.

That information provides as much docu-
mentation for my account as we can provide
without compromising the position of whistle-
blowers whose carsers stifl stand at risk so
fong as Mr, Zinser and his closest senior lead-
ars remain in their positions. | will extend that
same offer to the President as 1 believe that
his role under law complements my own obli-
gations as a Member to reveal significant vio-
lations of law that | believe we have uncov-
ared.
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THE SUSTAINABLE GROWTI RATRE

(Mrs., WATSON COLEMAN asked and
was given permission to address the
Houge for 1 minute.)

Mrs., WATSON COLEMAN. M.
Speaker, I haven't been in this office
very long, but it doesn’t take long to
pick up certain patterns of my Repub-
lican colleagues. They find a way to
hamstring immigration reform or pre-
vent women from getting the right to
choose at every possible opportunity.
In the case of the SGR fix, a very im-
portant bill that I am proud to have
also vobed for, Republicans have chosen
the latter.

At the risk of pointing out the obvi-
ous, Mr. Speaker, this is 2015. We can
talk to our TV remotes. We have
phones that show us in 3-D the nearest
restanrants, and printers that print
prosthetic limbs.

In 1973, Motorola gave us the world’s
first mobile phone. But 1973 was also
the last time there was any guestion of
whether or not 2 woman had the right
to malke her own deeisions about her
health, according to the U.S. Supreme
Court.

I am not the youngest Member of
Congress, but I am one of the newest.
So I would like to take this oppor-
tunity to invite my Republican col-
leagues to join me in the 21st century.
Moving forward, I vrge my colleagues
to stop waging war on women’s right to
make their own choices.

— R ——

194TH ANNIVERSARY OF GREEK
INDEPENDENCE

(Mr. SARBANES asked and was given
permission to address the House for 1
minute and to revise and extend his re-
marks.)

Mr, SARBANES. Mr. Speaker, I rise
today to mark the 194th anniversary of
Greek independence, to recall the day
that the Greek people established mod-
ern Greece as & free and independent
nation.

America’s Founding Fathers drew
upon the example of the ancient
Greeks in forming our consitlitutional
RepubHe. The relationship between
Greece and the United States is hased
on sghared democratic values and re-
spect for individnal freedom. The spirit
that guided the Greek peopie in secur-
ing their freedom nearly 200 years ago
regides with $hem still.

Today Greece faces tremendous chal-
lenges. We all acknowledge that, But I
am confident that Greece will ulti-
mately overcome its economic and hu-
manitarian crisis and thrive again. A
strong Greece will be able to take full
advantage of new opportunities thatb
are emerging in the eastern Mediterra-
nean and move forward as a vital eco-
nomic and cultural resource for a orit-
ical region of the world.

As we say each year when cetebrating
Greek Independence Day, long live
Greece, long live Amerieca, long live
freedom—Zitc Hllada, Zito Ameriki,
Zitc Eleftheria.




